You can view the agenda on the website
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code
To:

County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
Devon
EX2 4QD

The Chair and Members
of the Standards
Committee

Date: 27 June 2022

Contact: Karen Strahan 01392 382264
Email: karen.strahan@devon.gov.uk
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 5th July, 2022

A meeting of the Standards Committee is to be held on the above date at 2.00 pm in
the Clinton Room - Committee Suite - County Hall to consider the following matters.
Phil Norrey
Chief Executive
AGENDA

PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE
1

Apologies for absence

2

Items Requiring Urgent Attention
Items which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as a
matter of urgency.
PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND
PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE
DISCLOSED

3

Exclusion of the Press and Public
Recommendation: that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for
the following items of business under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information
as defined in Paragraph 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A of the Act namely, information
relating to an individual and information likely to reveal the identity of an individual
and in accordance with Section 36 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, by
virtue of the fact that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs
the public interest in disclosing the information.
Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions

4

Allegation of Breach of Members Code of Conduct
Documentation enclosed and attached as follows:
a

Constitution - Part 6a (Code of Personal Conduct) Members Code of
Conduct (Pages 1 - 10)

b

Guidance/Procedural Note for the Assessment Determination of Allegations
of Breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members (Pages 11 - 26)

c

Initial Complaints (Pages 27 - 72)
•
•
•
•
•

d

Subject Member - Response to Complaints (Pages 73 - 92)
•
•
•
•

e

E-mail from Complainant to Monitoring Officer 8/12/21 @ 15:51
E-mail from Complainant to Monitoring Officer 8/12/21 @ 20:04
E-mail from Complainant to Monitoring Officer 10/12/21 @ 14:03
E-mail from Complainant to Monitoring Officer 13/12/21 @ 14:45
E-mail from Complainant to Monitoring Officer 16/12/21 @ 17:51

E-mail from Subject Member to Monitoring Officer 20/12/21 @ 17:21
E-mail from Monitoring Officer to Subject Member 13/1/22 @ 18:07,
together with secondary e-mail trail
E-mail from Subject Member to Monitoring Officer 23/2/22 @ 13:46
E-mail from Subject Member to Monitoring Officer 23/2/22 @ 13:49

Independent Person’s Comments (Pages 93 - 96)
E-mail from Independent Person to Monitoring Officer dated 21/12/21 with
e-mail trail.

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain exempt information and should
therefore be treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any
other person(s). They need to be disposed of carefully and should be returned to the
Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.

MEETINGS INFORMATION AND NOTES FOR VISITORS
Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors
For SatNav purposes, the postcode for County Hall is EX2 4QD
Further information about how to get to County Hall gives information on visitor
parking at County Hall and bus routes.
Exeter has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes. For further information
see the Travel Devon webpages.
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High
Street), St David’s and St Thomas. All have regular bus services to the High Street.
Visitors to County Hall are asked to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors
have any specific requirements, please contact reception on 01392 382504
beforehand.
Membership of a Committee
For full details of the Membership of a Committee, please visit the Committee page
on the website and click on the name of the Committee you wish to see.
Committee Terms of Reference
For the terms of reference for any Committee, please visit the Committee page on
the website and click on the name of the Committee. Under purpose of Committee,
the terms of reference will be listed. Terms of reference for all Committees are also
detailed within Section 3b of the Council’s Constitution.
Access to Information
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or background papers relating to
an item on the agenda should contact the Clerk of the Meeting. To find this, visit the
Committee page on the website and find the Committee. Under contact information
(at the bottom of the page) the Clerk’s name and contact details will be present. All
agenda, reports and minutes of any Committee are published on the Website
Public Participation
The Council operates a Public Participation Scheme where members of the public
can interact with various Committee meetings in a number of ways. For full details of
whether or how you can participate in a meeting, please look at the Public
Participation Scheme or contact the Clerk for the meeting.
In relation to Highways and Traffic Orders Committees, any member of the District
Council or a Town or Parish Councillor for the area covered by the HATOC who is
not a member of the Committee, may attend and speak to any item on the Agenda
with the consent of the Committee, having given 24 hours’ notice.
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings
The proceedings of any meeting may be recorded and / or broadcasted live, apart
from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the
press and public. For more information go to our webcasting pages

Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so,
as directed by the Chair. Filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible without
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and
having regard to the wishes of others present who may not wish to be filmed.
Anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic
Services Officer in attendance.
Members of the public may also use social media to report on proceedings.
Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council
It is to be noted that Members of the Council must declare any interest they may
have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking
place on that item.
WiFI
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall.
Fire
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately by the nearest
available exit following the fire exit signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green
break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings; do not use
the lifts; and do not re-enter the building until told to do so. Assemble either on the
cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car park
behind Bellair.
First Aid
Contact Main Reception (Extension 2504) for a trained first aider.
Mobile Phones
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council
Chamber
Alternative Formats

If anyone needs a copy of an Agenda and/or a Report in
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other
languages), please contact the Customer Service Centre on
0345 155 1015 or email: committee@devon.gov.uk or write to
the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat in G31, County Hall,
Exeter, EX2 4QD.
Induction Loop available

Agenda Item 4a
MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT
Foreword, Statement and Purpose
(this Foreword, Statement and Purpose does not form part of the
Members’ Code of Conduct. It is intended to set out the background,
purpose, and importance of the Code)
The role of Councillor is a vital part of democracy and it is important
that Councillors can be held accountable and adopt the behaviours and
responsibilities associated with the role.
Councillors represent local residents, work to develop better services
and deliver local change. The public trust Councillors to represent the
local area and take decisions fairly, openly, and transparently. There is
both an individual and collective responsibility to meet the expectations
by maintaining high standards and demonstrating good conduct, and
by challenging behaviour which falls below expectations.
Importantly, Councillors should be able to undertake their role without
intimidation, abuse, bullying or threatening behaviour from anyone,
including the general public.
The Council’s Code is designed to encourage good conduct and
safeguard the public’s trust in local government.
The Council will undertake an annual review of its Code to ensure it
continues to be fit-for-purpose, incorporating advances in technology,
social media and changes in legislation.
The purpose of the Code of Conduct is to assist Councillors in
modelling the behaviour that is expected, to provide check and
balance, and to set out the type of conduct that could lead to action
being taken. The Code is also there to protect Councillors, the public,
fellow Councillors, Local Authority Officers and the reputation of Local
Government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of all
Councillors and specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct.
Induction and training on Governance issues, including this Code of
Conduct is important and the Council will provide this with updates as
required. It is incumbent on Councillors to endeavour to attend.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4a
PART 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS
Public Duty and Private Interests: An introduction
1.1.

This Code applies to you as a Member or a Co-opted Member of
Devon County Council (For the purposes of this Code, a “Co-opted
Member” means a person who is not a member of Devon County
Council but who:
(a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of Devon County
Council; or
(b) is a member of, and represents Devon County Council on, any joint
committee or joint sub-committee of Devon County Council,
irrespective of whether or not that person is entitled to vote on any
question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that committee or
sub-committee.)

1.2.

When acting in your capacity as a Member or Co-opted Member of the
County Council, you should have regard to the Principles of Public Life
namely, Selflessness, Honesty/Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability,
Openness, Personal judgment, Respect for others, Duty to uphold the
law, Stewardship and Leadership.

1.3.

When acting in your capacity as a Member or Co-opted Member of the
County Council –
(a) you must act solely in the public interest and should never
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any
person or act to gain financial or other material benefits for
yourself, a member of your family, close associate or
relevant person;
(b) you must not place yourself under a financial or other
obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might
seek to influence you in the performance of your official
duties;
(c) when carrying out your public duties you must make all
choices, such as making public appointments, awarding
contracts or recommending individuals for rewards or
benefits, on merit;
(d) you are accountable for your decisions to the public and you
must co-operate fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to
your office;
(e) you must be as open as possible about your decisions and
actions and the decisions and actions of the County Council

Page 2

Agenda Item 4a
and should be prepared to give reasons for those decisions
and actions in accordance with any statutory requirements
and any reasonable additional requirements imposed by the
County Council or contained in its Constitution,
(f) you must declare any private interests, whether disclosable
or personal, that relate to your public duties and must take
steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects
the public interest, including registering and declaring
interests in a manner conforming with the procedures set out
at Part 2 of this Code;
(g) you must declare any offered gift or hospitality over the value
of £25 and whether this was accepted or declined, in line
with the Council's Policy Statement on the Proper Conduct of
Business and Financial Regulations. Declarations will be
published on the Council’s website.
(h) you must, when using or authorising the use by others of the
resources of the County Council, ensure that such resources
are not used improperly for political purposes (including party
political purposes) and that any use is in accordance with the
County Council’s reasonable requirements;
(i) you must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code
of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986 or
any similar Communications Protocol or Code produced by
the County Council;
(j) you must promote and support high standards of conduct
when serving in your public post, in particular as
characterised by the above requirements, by leadership and
example.

1.4.

Whilst you may be strongly influenced by the views of others, it is your
responsibility alone to decide what view to take on any question which
Members have to decide.

1.5.

Do nothing as a Member which you could not justify to the public.

1.6.

The reputation of the County Council depends on your conduct and
what the public believes about your conduct.

1.7.

It is not enough to avoid actual impropriety, you should at all times
avoid any occasion for suspicion or appearance of improper conduct.

1.8.

It is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code and
also any formal Standards processes, investigations or sanctions that
may occur.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4a
Definitions
2. In this Code –
-

“interest or interests” have the meanings set out in Part 2 of this
Code

“Relevant person” means:
 you or
 your spouse or civil partner, or
 a person with whom you are living as husband and wife or as if
they were civil partners or in a same sex marriage
and you are aware that that other person has an interest

-

- “relevant period” means a period of 12 months ending with the date
on which you notified the Monitoring Officer of an interest
-

"meeting" means any meeting of –
 the County Council;
 the Cabinet of the County Council;
 any of the Council’s or the Cabinet’s, Committees, SubCommittees, Joint Committees, Joint Sub-committees or Area
Committees;
 one or more Members, formal or informal and with or without
officers, relating to the discharge of the County Council’s
functions where a formal record is made by a Council Officer.

-

“member” includes a co-opted member

Scope
3. You must comply with this Code……….
3.1.

whenever you are acting in your official capacity, when:
(a) you are engaged on the business of the County Council; or
(b) you behave so as to give a reasonable person the impression that
you are acting as a representative of the County Council.

3.2
noting that the Code applies to all forms of communication and
interaction, including;
•
•
•
•

face-to-face
online / telephone meetings
written / verbal communication
non-verbal communication and electronic & social media
communication, posts, statements and comments

Page 4

Agenda Item 4a
General obligations
4. You must –
(a) treat others with courtesy and respect, including the public, fellow
Councillors, Local Authority employees and also employees and
representatives of partner organisations and those volunteering for
the local authority; and
(b) when reaching decisions on any matter, do so on the merits of the
circumstances and in the public interest and have reasonable
regard to any relevant advice provided to you by an officer of the
County Council.
(Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in
the written word. Having different views is part of a healthy democracy
and Councillors can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with
views, ideas, opinions and policies in a robust but civil manner.
However, there should be no subjecting individuals, groups of people
or organisations to personal attack.
Contact with the public should always be polite and courteous.
In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the
public. If this is not the case and Councillors are being subjected to
abusive, intimidatory or threatening behaviour, they should seek
support and assistance from the Monitoring Officer)
5. You must not –
(a) attempt to use your position as a Member improperly to confer on or
secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or
disadvantage;
(b) do anything which may cause the County Council to breach a
statutory duty or any of the equality enactments (as defined in
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, which places specific duties
on Local Authorities);
(c) bully any person (bullying may be characterised as any single act or
pattern of offensive, intimidating, malicious, insulting or humiliating
behaviour; an abuse or misuse of power or authority which attempts
to undermine or coerce or has the effect of undermining or coercing
an individual or group of individuals by gradually eroding their
confidence or capability which may cause them to suffer stress or
fear. It can happen face-to-face, on social media, in emails or
phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social events and
may not always be noticed by others);

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a
(d) harass any person (the Protection from Harassment Act 1997
defines harassment as conduct that causes alarm or distress or
puts people in fear of violence. It must involve such conduct on at
least two occasions and can include repeated attempts to impose
unwanted communications and contact upon a person in a manner
that could be expected to cause distress or fear in any reasonable
person).
(e) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to
be –
i) a complainant,
ii) a witness, or
iii) involved in the administration of any investigation or
proceedings,
in relation to an allegation that any Member has failed to comply with
the Council’s Code of Conduct; or
(f) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, the County
Council;
(g) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or
information acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably
to be aware, is of a confidential nature, except where–
i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it;
ii) you are required by law to do so;
iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of
obtaining professional advice, provided that the third party
agrees not to disclose the information to any other person; or
iv) the disclosure is:
a. in the public interest; and
b. made in good faith and
c. in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the
Council;
(h) prevent another person from gaining access to information to which
that person is entitled by law;
(i) conduct yourself in a manner or behave in such a way so as to give
a reasonable person the impression that you have brought your
office or the Council into disrepute.
[NB: A complaint may be made to the Monitoring Officer or Standards
Committee where any person thinks they have evidence which they
think shows that a councillor has not followed the Council’s Code of
conduct; see
http://www.devon.gov.uk/index/councildemocracy/county_councillors/c
ouncillorcomplaints.htm)]

Page 6

Agenda Item 4a
PART 2: INTERESTS
Registration of Interests
6. You must, within 28 days of—
(a) this Code being adopted by, or applied to, the County Council;
or
(b) your taking office as a Member or Co-opted Member of the
County Council,
whichever is the later, and annually thereafter, provide written
notification to the County Council’s Monitoring Officer of:
i) any disclosable pecuniary interest as defined by Regulations
made by the Secretary of State, where the pecuniary interest
is yours, your spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is the pecuniary
interest of somebody with whom you are living with as a
husband or wife; and
ii) any other personal interest laid down by the County Council,
as set out at paragraph 7 below;
which will be recorded in the County Council’s Register of Members’
Interests and made available for public inspection including on the
Council’s website.
6.1.

Within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest or change to
any interest already registered, you must register details of that new
interest or change by providing written notification to the County
Council’s Monitoring Officer.

6.2.

Whether or not an interest within paragraphs 7.1.and 7.2 below has
been entered onto the County Council’s register, you must disclose any
interest to any meeting at which you are present in any matter being
considered, in line with paragraph 8 below, where the matter is not a
‘sensitive interest’.

6.3.

Following any disclosure of an interest not on the County Council’s
register or the subject of pending notification, you must notify the
Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days beginning with the date
of disclosure.

6.4.

In relation to disclosable pecuniary interests, in this Part of the Code
the expressions in the left hand column below have the meanings
attributed to them in the right hand column:

Page 7

Agenda Item 4a
“body in which the means a firm in which the relevant person is a
relevant person has partner or a body corporate of which the relevant
a beneficial interest” person is a director or in the securities of which
the relevant person has a beneficial interest
“director”
includes a member of the committee of
management of an industrial and provident
society
“land”
excludes an easement, servitude, interest, or
right over land which does not carry with it a right
for the relevant person (alone or jointly with
another) to occupy the land or to receive income
“relevant authority”
means the authority of which you are a member
“relevant person”
means you, your spouse or civil partner, a
person with whom you are living with as husband
and wife or a person with whom you are living
with as if you are civil partners
“securities”
means shares, debentures, debenture stock,
loan stock, bonds, units of a collective
investment scheme within the meaning of the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and
other securities of any description, other than
money deposited with a building society

7. The interests you must register are:
7.1.

- those disclosable pecuniary interests defined by The Relevant
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 (SI
2012/1464) as set out below, namely:

(a) any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain by you or a relevant person;
(b) any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from
Devon County Council) made or provided within the relevant period in
respect of any expenses incurred in carrying out your duties as a
Member, or towards your expenses, including any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and
Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992;
(c) any contract which is made between you or, so far as you are
aware, a relevant person (as defined at Para 2 above) (in which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the County Council:
1) under which goods or services are to be provided or works
are to be executed; and
2) which has not been fully discharged

Page 8

Agenda Item 4a
(d) any beneficial interest in land held by you, or so far as you are
aware, a relevant person which is within the administrative area of
the County Council;
(e) any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the
administrative area of the County Council for a month or longer
(f) any tenancy where (to your knowledge):
1) the landlord is Devon County Council; and
2) the tenant is a body in which you or, so far as you are aware,
a relevant person has a beneficial interest.
(g) any beneficial interest that you or, so far as you are aware, a
relevant person has in securities of a body where:
1) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or
land in the administrative area of the County Council and
2) either:
a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or
b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one
class, the total nominal value of the shares of any one
class in which the relevant person has a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that class.
7.2.

- those other personal interests laid down by the County Council,
namely your membership of any body to which you have been
appointed by the County Council or exercising functions of a public
nature directed to charitable purposes or whose principal purposes
include influence of public opinion or policy, your membership of any
other local Authority and of any political party or trade union.

7.3.

In addition to those interests listed at 7.1 and 7.2 above which you are
required to register, you may wish also to declare membership of any
body which, in your view, might create a conflict of interest in carrying
out your duties as a County Councillor, such as membership of the
Freemasons or any similar body, including any unpaid Directorships.

7.4.

Where the County Council’s Monitoring Officer agrees that any
information relating to your interests is “sensitive information” namely
information whose availability for inspection by the public is likely to
create a serious risk that any person may be subjected to violence or
intimidation, you need not include that information when registering that
interest, or, as the case may be, any change to that interest.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4a
7.5.

You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any change of
circumstances which means that information excluded is no longer
sensitive information, notify the County Council’s Monitoring Officer
asking that the information be included in the County Council’s
Register of Members' Interests.

Declaration of Interests
8. Unless a dispensation has been granted*, you may not participate in any
discussion of, vote on, or discharge any function related to any matter in
which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest as defined by Regulations
referred to at Para 6(b)(i) and you must also observe any restrictions the
County Council may place on your involvement in matters where you have
any interest as defined by the Council and shown at Para 7 above.
[*See explanatory note appended to this Code, below].
8.1.

Where you have any interest in any business of the County Council
and you attend any meeting at which that business is to be considered,
you must:
(a) disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest but
where your interest is sensitive you are not required to disclose the
interest but merely the fact that there is a disclosable pecuniary
interest in the matter concerned;
(b) disclose any interest in accordance with the Council’s reasonable
requirements, no later than the commencement of the consideration
of the business in which you have that interest, or (if later) the time
at which the interest becomes apparent to you;
(c) where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, withdraw from the
room or chamber where a meeting considering the business is
being held at the commencement of the consideration of that
business in which you have that interest, or (if later) the time at
which the interest becomes apparent to you; and
(d) not seek to influence improperly any decision about that business.

8.2 You also have an interest where a reasonable person with knowledge of
the relevant facts would regard you, your relative, or your close friend as
having an interest in any business of the County Council that is being
considered at a meeting that you attend where the matter affects the
financial interest or well-being of yourself, your relative or your close
friend to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the
majority of residents of the area affected by the decision such that it is
likely to prejudice your view of the wider public interest.
unless you have obtained a dispensation from the County Council’s
Monitoring Officer.

Page 10

Agenda Item 4b

Making a Complaint about a Devon County
Councillor

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 11

1

Agenda Item 4b
Contents
Introduction ....................................................................................................................................... 3
Part 1 - How do I make a complaint? ............................................................................................. 4
Part 2 - What is a Standards Committee? .................................................................................... 5
Part 3 - What complaints does the Standards Committee deal with? ..................................... 5
Part 4 - How should I set out my complaint? ............................................................................... 6
Part 5 - What happens to my complaint – how is it processed and dealt with? ..................... 6
Part 6 - What happens after my complaint has been looked at? ............................................. 9
Part 7 - Withdrawal of complaints ............................................................................................... 10
Part 8 - Complainant conﬁdentiality ........................................................................................... 10
Part 9 - Conﬂicts of interests ....................................................................................................... 11
Part 10 - Retention of records ...................................................................................................... 11
Part 11 - Generally ......................................................................................................................... 12
Appendix 1 - Councillor compaints process - public interest .................................................. 12
Appendix 2 - Assessment criteria ................................................................................................ 13

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 12

2

Agenda Item 4b
Introduction
Read our guidance about the assessment and determination of allegations of breaches of the
code of conduct for county councillors.

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 13

3

Agenda Item 4b
Part 1 - How do I make a complaint?
The code of conduct for members is set out in the County Council’s Constitution.
If you believe that a county councillor has breached the code of conduct for members and
you would like to make a complaint, you may do so by submitting a complaint in writing to:
Andrew Yendole (County Solicitor)
Devon County Council
County Hall
Topsham Road
Exeter
EX2 4QD
who will arrange for it to be considered by the Council’s Standards Committee or for any
other course of action to be taken, as appropriate.
You may use the oﬃcial complaint form or simply set out your complaint in a letter.
Complaints may be sent in by post to the above address or by email to
members.services@devon.gov.uk.
If you are unable to download a copy of the form, a copy may be sent to you upon request.
We can also help if English is not your ﬁrst language.
If you are unable to make a written complaint we will oﬀer to transpose your complaint onto
a complaint form with an accompanying written statement (if required) which you will then
be asked to sign or otherwise indicate to the Council’s satisfaction that you wish to make a
complaint in those terms.
If you are unwilling to sign the documentation or fail to indicate to the Council’s satisfaction
that you wish to make a complaint in those terms it will not take any further action on the
complaint unless the monitoring oﬃcer is satisﬁed that the circumstances justify a departure
from this position.
If you make a verbal complaint and simply decline to conﬁrm the complaint in writing for
reasons which the Council does not consider to be justiﬁable it will take no further action on
the complaint.
The Council does understand that complaints about sensitive personal issues, such as alleged
harassment, bullying or victimisation may need to be progressed while preserving the
conﬁdentiality or anonymity of the complainant.

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 14

4

Agenda Item 4b
Some complaints will fall outside of the scope of this procedure. If that happens the
complaints will be forwarded to the relevant oﬃcers in the Council the complainant will be
advised of this.
Similarly, if your complaint is about a district, unitary or town or parish councillor then you
should send it to the relevant district or unitary council – in other words, the council that
collects your Council Tax.

Part 2 - What is a Standards Committee?
The County Council’s Standards Committee is a group of people appointed by the Council to
help it maintain and promote high ethical standards.
The Committee is made up of councillors and co-opted members drawn from the community
(who are not councillors or employees of the County Council).

Part 3 - What complaints does the Standards Committee deal with?
The Standards Committee can only deal with complaints about the behaviour of a county
councillor. It will not deal with complaints about things that are not covered by the members’
code of conduct.
If you make a complaint to the Standards Committee it must be in writing. You should say
which county councillor it is about and why you think they have not followed the code of
conduct. The Committee cannot look at complaints that:
are about incidents that happened before the councillor was elected or chosen to serve
are about incidents that happened before the Council adopted the code of conduct
other than incidents of alleged harassment, bullying or victimisation
are about the way the Council conducts or records its meetings
would not disclose a breach of the code of conduct
Complaints about the:
actions of the Council’s employees
way the Council has or has not done something
decisions of the Council or one of the services it provides
are the subject of a separate complaints system which can be accessed on the County
Council’s feedback/complaints system.

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 15

5

Agenda Item 4b
If when using this complaints system you think the Council has not dealt with the matter
properly and has failed to resolve a complaint locally, you can ask the Local Government and
Social Care Ombudsman to investigate. The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
cannot be used for complaints against elected members.

Part 4 - How should I set out my complaint?
It is very important that you set your complaint out fully and clearly and provide all the
information at the outset. You should also provide any documents or other material that you
believe is relevant and wish to be considered, wherever possible.
We recommend that you use our complaint form or provide a covering note summarising
what you are complaining about, especially if your complaint includes a lot of supporting
documentation.
In the summary you should tell us exactly what each county councillor you are complaining
about said or did that has caused you to complain.
If you are sending supporting documentation please cross-reference it in the summary of
your complaint.
You should be as speciﬁc as possible and substantiate your complaint where you can, to
demonstrate why you believe that the councillor(s) complained about has breached the code
of conduct.
It is very important that you set your complaint out clearly and provide at the outset all the
information you wish the Council to consider. The monitoring oﬃcer may need to contact you
to seek clariﬁcation of your complaint but this will not, hopefully, delay consideration of your
complaint.

Part 5 - What happens to my complaint – how is it processed and dealt
with?
When a complaint is received (which is within the scope of the Councillor complaints process)
the Council aims to acknowledge receipt within three working days.
If the monitoring oﬃcer considers that the allegation concerned may disclose an oﬀence
under the Localism Act 2011 or otherwise, they will, in appropriate circumstances, pass to
the police or Director of Public Prosecutions. No prosecution can be brought without the
consent of the Director of Public Prosecutions.

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 16

6

Agenda Item 4b
If it transpires that no oﬀence was committed, whether following trial or otherwise, the
complaint could be reintroduced to this procedure for determination of any breach of the
code and appropriate sanction, if any.
The monitoring oﬃcer or their nominated representative(s) will carry out a preliminary
assessment of whether the alleged behaviour falls within the code of conduct – and collect
any information they deem necessary.
This will normally be done within 10 working days. If the allegation is about a matter outside
of the code of conduct (see Part 3) or is within one of the criteria set out below, the complaint
will not usually progress beyond the initial assessment stage and the complainant will be
notiﬁed accordingly, for example:
if the complaint is substantially the same as a complaint previously dealt with
if the period since the alleged behaviour is so signiﬁcant that it is unreasonable or not in
the public interest to pursue
if the complaint is trivial
if the complaint discloses a minor breach of the code that it is not in the public interest
to pursue
if the complaint is/appears to be malicious, politically motivated or tit-for-tat and the
complaint doesn’t disclose suﬃciently serious potential breaches of the code.
if the complaint is covered by the Council’s persistent and vexatious complaints policy
and the complaint doesn’t disclose suﬃciently serious potential breaches of the code.
if the member against whom the allegation has made reasonable eﬀorts to put things
right and the complaint does not disclose suﬃciently serious potential breaches of the
code
if the complaint is about a person who is no longer a member of the Council
During the preliminary assessment, the monitoring oﬃcer will write to the subject member,
attaching a copy of the complaint, and consider any comments the subject member has
regarding the complaint.
The monitoring oﬃcer will consult with the independent person. The name of the complainant
will be disclosed to the subject member unless conﬁdentiality has been requested and the
monitoring oﬃcer considers that request to be justiﬁed.
The monitoring oﬃcer will, following consultation with the independent person, determine
what action is to be taken on the complaint in accordance with the assessment criteria which
can be seen in Appendix 2. The options available are set out in paragraphs 1 to 6 of Appendix
2.

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 17

7

Agenda Item 4b
If the monitoring oﬃcer is of the view that a local settlement is unachievable, or the
complaint warrants it, they shall, following consultation with the independent person,
institute a formal investigation and report the ﬁndings of that investigation together with the
views of the independent person to the full Standards Committee for determination (with
neither the complainant nor the subject member having the right of attendance).
The monitoring oﬃcer may refer the complaint to an Assessment Sub-Committee (comprising
three members of the Standards Committee and at least one shall be a co-opted member) to
determine whether or not the allegation appears to disclose a failure to observe the code of
conduct and then, if it judges such a failure, whether the matter merits investigation.
Thereafter the monitoring oﬃcer can:
consult the independent person if the Assessment Sub-Committee suggests any action
other than a formal investigation
institute a formal investigation if the Assessment Sub-Committee is of the view that the
matter merits investigation
report the ﬁndings of that investigation together with the views of the independent
person on those ﬁndings to the full Standards Committee for determination (with
neither party having the right of attendance)
The monitoring oﬃcer and the subject member may seek the views of the nominated
independent person at any time during the process.
The assessment and determination of complaints will normally be conducted by an
Assessment Sub-Committee or the full Standards Committee in ‘Part II or closed’ session and
information relating thereto will be considered exempt under the provisions of the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972, subject to the application of the public interest test, as appropriate.
Data protection requirements will be complied with and may prevent the public disclosure of
information relating to complaints.
When the Committee has considered the complaint, the outcome will be sent to the subject
member and the complainant and the decision notice (that is, the minutes of the meeting)
published. This will be available on the Council’s website.
Below is a summary of the above process.
Step

Action

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 18

8

Agenda Item 4b
1

If the circumstances of the complaint indicate that an oﬀence under Chapter 7 of Part 1 of the
Localism Act 2011 may have been committed and that the complaint ought to be
investigated, by the police, then this will be forwarded accordingly.

2

The monitoring oﬃcer will consider whether the complaint falls within the Councillor
Complaints Procedure. If so, the monitoring oﬃcer will write to the subject member with
details of the complaint, including who has complained (unless any conﬁdentiality request has
been agreed).
The monitoring oﬃcer will also provide the subject member with the details of the
independent person who has been appointed to advise on the complaint and who the subject
member may contact to seek their views.
The subject member is given an opportunity to provide a written response to the complaint.
There may be a time limit given for providing this written response.

3

The subject member can provide a written response and any additional evidence or indicate
that they do not wish to provide such a response.

4

The monitoring oﬃcer will consider the complaint again in the context of any written
submissions and supporting documentation provided by the subject member.

5

The monitoring oﬃcer will, following consultation with the independent person, determine
what action to be taken on the complaint.
The other options could be:
• to make no ﬁnding as to whether there has been a breach of the code and take no further
action
• to make no ﬁnding as to whether there has been a breach of the code but determine that
some action other than an investigation is appropriate including, for example, some form of
local settlement or conciliation
• to ﬁnd no breach of the code
• to ﬁnd a breach of the code without an investigation but take no action
• to ﬁnd a breach of the code without an investigation and take some action
• to refer the complaint to an Assessment Sub Committee to determine whether or not the
complaint should be formally investigated
• to require the complaint to be formally investigated

6

Where a complaint is investigated, a report shall be generated which shall be presented to the
full Standards Committee. Before that happens, the subject member will be consulted on both
the draft report and ﬁnal report (with 10 working days to respond) and their views be reported
to the Standards Committee alongside the investigation report.
Having considered the investigation report, the Standards Committee shall make a ﬁnding as
to whether or not there has been a breach of the code and, if there is a ﬁnding of a breach,
what action should be taken.

7

The outcome of the determination of the complaint will be notiﬁed in writing to the
complainant and the subject member within ﬁve working days.

NB: Steps 1 to 5 above will normally be conducted within 28 days of receipt of the complaint.
If it is not possible to complete any such tasks within that time the complainant and subject
member will be contacted and advised of the delay and when the steps will be completed.

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 19

9

Agenda Item 4b
Part 6 - What happens after my complaint has been looked at?
If potential criminal oﬀences are identiﬁed and the complaint referred for investigation with a
view to prosecution the appropriate procedures of the police or Council will be followed so as
to protect the integrity of their investigation.
When a decision has been reached on your complaint the Council will notify you in writing
telling you what that decision is and what action has or will be taken.
Any action or investigation will be implemented. If other action is determined as appropriate
and either party declines to cooperate that will be reported to the monitoring oﬃcer who may
decide to progress the original complaint through the process as set out above.
Any investigations and hearings following the Standards investigation are outside of the
scope of this procedure and will be subject to separate procedural rules.

Part 7 - Withdrawal of complaints
Any request to withdraw a complaint will normally be granted but in considering such a
request from the complainant the monitoring oﬃcer will consider whether:
the public interest in taking action on the complaint outweighs the complainant’s desire
to withdraw it
the complaint is such that action can or should be taken on it without the complainant’s
participation
there appears to be an identiﬁable underlying reason for the request to withdraw the
complaint such as whether there is information to suggest that the complainant may
have been pressurised into withdrawing the complaint

Part 8 - Complainant conﬁdentiality
The subject member will, in normal circumstances, be told from the outset who has
complained about them.
If a complainant asks for their identity to be withheld their request will be considered by the
monitoring oﬃcer prior to the member being notiﬁed that a complaint has been made.
Each request for conﬁdentiality will be considered on its merits and in determining such a
request the following will be considered:

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 20

10

Agenda Item 4b
Whether the complainant reasonably believes that they, or those connected to them,
will be at risk of harm if their identity is disclosed.
Whether the complainant is alleging harassment, bullying, or victimisation.
That the complainant is reasonably concerned about the consequences to their
employment, or those connected to them if their identity is disclosed.
That the complainant, or somebody closely connected to them, suﬀers from a medical
condition and there is evidence of medical risks associated with their identity being
disclosed or conﬁrmation from an appropriate medical professional that that is the case.
The public interest – in some cases the public interest in proceeding with the complaint
may outweigh the complainant’s wish to have their identity withheld.
If it is not considered appropriate to grant a request for conﬁdentiality the complainant will be
oﬀered the opportunity to withdraw the complaint rather than proceed with it.
Complainants must recognise that maintaining conﬁdentiality may hinder the eﬀectiveness of
any investigation.

Part 9 - Conﬂicts of interests
If any oﬃcer has any personal or professional conﬂict of interest in relation to a complaint,
they must have no involvement or no further involvement in dealing with that complaint
other than such reasonable steps as are necessary to ensure that the complaint is dealt with
by someone other than them.
Any conﬂicts identiﬁed during the course of a matter will be managed appropriately by the
monitoring oﬃcer or their nominee.
An oﬃcer who has previously advised a subject member or has given advice to the
complainant about the issues giving rise to a complaint must seek advice from their line
manager as to whether they can properly be involved in the conduct of a related complaint.
Public perception and the public interest will be considered.
If any independent person has any personal or professional conﬂict of interest in relation to a
complaint, they must have no involvement or no further involvement in dealing with that
complaint other than such reasonable steps as are necessary to ensure that the complaint is
dealt with by someone other than them. Where this occurs another independent person will
be appointed and the appropriate person(s) notiﬁed

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 21

11

Agenda Item 4b
Part 10 - Retention of records
All records relating to any complaint and the consideration thereof will be stored in
accordance with the County Council’s records management policy and procedures and the
provisions of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972.

Part 11 - Generally
All complaints will be considered on their merits and according to the facts.
The assessment criteria, which are subject to review by the County Council’s Standards
Committee, will be used as guidance in the consideration and determination of complaints,
but the monitoring oﬃcer or other decision maker, which will be an Assessment SubCommittee or the full Standards Committee when it is not the monitoring oﬃcer, are entitled
to depart from these criteria when they consider it appropriate to do so.

Appendix 1 - Councillor compaints process - public interest
When considering the public interest, the monitoring oﬃcer and independent person consider
each of the following public interest factors set out below.
These factors are not exhaustive, and not all may be relevant in every case.
The weight to be attached to each of these factors, and the factors identiﬁed, will also vary
according to the facts and merits of each case.
The seriousness of the breach, for example, has the member brought the Council seriously
into disrepute? The more serious the breach the more likely investigation and referral for
further consideration are required.
Has the member deliberately sought personal gain for himself or another person at the public
expense? If there is evidence of this, it is likely that the complaint will be investigated and
referred for further consideration.
Are the circumstances of the breach such that a member has misused a position of trust or
authority and caused harm to a person? If there is evidence of this it is likely that the
complaint will be investigated and referred for further consideration.
Was the breach motivated by any form of discrimination against the victim’s ethnic or

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 22

12

Agenda Item 4b
national origin, gender, disability, age, religion or belief, sexual orientation or gender
identity? If a member’s conduct is motivated by any form of discrimination it is likely that the
complaint will be investigated and referred for further consideration.
Is there evidence of previous similar behaviour on the part of the member? If so and the
matter complained about is serious enough it is likely that the complaint will be investigated
and referred for further consideration.
Is the breach such that an investigation or referral to the Standards Committee is required to
maintain public conﬁdence in elected members of Devon County Council? If so it is likely that
the complaint will be investigated and referred for further consideration.
Is investigation or referral to the Standards Committee a proportionate response? Namely,
would the cost of an investigation or consideration by the Standards Committee be regarded
as excessive when weighed against any likely sanction?

Appendix 2 - Assessment criteria
It is recognised that while complaints may relate to the same aspect of the code they may
diﬀer considerably in terms of the facts and how serious they are.
There may be huge diﬀerences in the relevance and amount of detail regarding the
complaint. For these reasons, these assessment criteria can only be a guide.
Overriding criteria
The following tests will be applied during the initial assessment of a complaint:
Is the complaint about one or more named members of the County Council?
Was the subject member in oﬃce at the time of the alleged conduct?
Did the incident complained of happen before the Council adopted the code of conduct?
If proven, would the complaint disclose a breach of the code of conduct?
1. No ﬁnding of whether there is a breach of the code and take no further action
If on the facts it is not possible to determine whether there has been or may have been a
breach of the code and the alleged conduct does not merit an investigation, having regard to
the public interest, this is the appropriate ﬁnding to make.

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 23

13

Agenda Item 4b
2. No ﬁnding of whether there is a breach of the code but action other than
investigation is appropriate
If on the facts it is not possible to determine whether there has been or may have been a
breach of the code, the alleged conduct does not merit an investigation, having regard to the
public interest, but the allegation and any response from the subject member disclose an
underlying issue that action such as mediation or training on the code or council procedures
might assist with, this is the appropriate ﬁnding to make. The other action information below
needs to be considered in these circumstances.
3. Finding of no breach of the code
If the facts available demonstrate on the balance of probabilities that there has been no
breach of the code, this is the appropriate ﬁnding to make.
If there is no breach of the code a sanction cannot be imposed but other action such as
mediation, conciliation, training or some other form of local settlement might still be
considered.
4. Finding of a breach of the code without an investigation
A ﬁnding that the code of conduct has been breached without the need for an investigation
will usually be appropriate in the following circumstances where:
it can clearly be shown that from the information that has been provided by the subject
member and the complainant that a breach of the code has occurred without the need
for an investigation
the subject member has admitted to the breach of the code, whether or not they have
oﬀered to remedy the breach
it can be shown that an investigation is unlikely to be able to establish any further
independent relevant evidence regarding the complaint or that the cost of obtaining
any further evidence would not be justiﬁed having regard to the public interest and that
on the evidence supplied a breach of the code can be shown
A breach of the code without investigation may be found if the complaint satisﬁes the
circumstances outlined above and that it can be clearly shown, on the balance of
probabilities, that a breach of the code of conduct has occurred.
(a) No further action
If a breach of the code is found but it is trivial, a technical breach or otherwise of limited
eﬀect, it may be appropriate to take no further action.

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 24

14

Agenda Item 4b
(b) Referral for other action
A complaint may be referred for other action in the circumstances listed below. However, in
general, other action may be used where the complaint discloses a widespread problem
rather than a speciﬁc one concerning the member’s conduct.
Referring a matter for other action eﬀectively closes the door on a review of the decision as
the matter cannot subsequently be referred for investigation if the complainant is dissatisﬁed
with the outcome of the other action. As such, other action should be exercised only where
appropriate.
If necessary the assessment of a complaint can be deferred while further information is
obtained and other action is being considered.
In addition, the subject member and the complainant can be contacted to see if they will
accept other action as a way of resolving the complaint, such as by way of an apology.
The following should be considered in determining whether it is appropriate to refer a
complaint for other action:
Does taking further action provide an opportunity to resolve the issue and to prevent
any similar issues arising in the future and promote good governance?
Does the complaint present a potentially less serious breach of the code than would
require the matter to be referred for investigation and is any beneﬁt to be gained from
referring the matter for investigation?
Is the subject member a member of an authority which appears to have a poor
understanding of the code and relevant procedures?
Is the Council suﬀering from a widespread breakdown in internal relationships and trust
where a course of action other than an investigation of a complaint may be more
appropriate?
5. Refer the complaint to an Assessment Sub Committee to determine whether or
not the complaint should be formally investigated
The Assessment Sub-Committee will comprise three members of the Standards Committee
(and at least one shall be a co-opted member) to determine whether or not the allegation
appears to disclose a failure to observe the code of conduct and then, if it judges such a
failure, whether the matter merits investigation.
6. Referral for investigation
A complaint should usually be referred for investigation if:

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 25

15

Agenda Item 4b
the complaint has passed the initial tests
the subject member has denied the allegations but the information presented indicates
that there may be a breach of the code
based on the information provided the potential breach of the code of conduct is
suﬃciently serious that an investigation should be undertaken to discount or
substantiate the complaint and to determine what action, if any, is appropriate

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/
Created on 06/04/22. For latest version please see https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/making-a-complaint-about-a-devon-county-councillor/

Page 26

16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 4c

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 55

Agenda Item 4d

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 57

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 4e

